
 

NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

Your attendance is requested at a meeting to be held in the 
 

The Jeffrey Room, St. Giles Square, Northampton, NN1 1DE. 
 

on Monday, 21 May 2012 
 

at 6:00 pm. 
 

D Kennedy 
Chief Executive  

AGENDA 

 
1. APOLOGIES    

Please contact Emma Garratt on 01604 837089 or 
egarratt@northampton.gov.uk when submitting apologies for 
absence.  

 

  
2. MINUTES    
To approve the minutes of the meeting held on the 19th March 
2012  
3. DEPUTATIONS / PUBLIC ADDRESSES    
  
4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
  
5. MATTERS OF URGENCY WHICH BY REASON OF 

SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES THE CHAIR IS OF THE 
OPINION SHOULD BE CONSIDERED   

 

  
6. EXTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT   Trevor Croote 

(Audit Commission) 
(Copy herewith)  
7. FINANCE MONITORING   Isabell Proctor 

X 8757 
(Copy herewith)  
8. INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT   Chris Dickens  

(PWC) 
(Copy herewith)  
9. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS    

THE CHAIR TO MOVE: 
“THAT THE PUBLIC AND PRESS BE EXCLUDED FROM THE 
REMAINDER OF THE MEETING ON THE GROUNDS THAT 
THERE IS LIKELY TO BE DISCLOSURE TO THEM OF SUCH 
CATEGORIES OF EXEMPT INFORMATION AS DEFINED BY 
SECTION 100(1) OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 AS 
LISTED AGAINST SUCH ITEMS OF BUSINESS BY 
REFERENCE TO THE APPROPRIATE PARAGRAPH OF 
SCHEDULE 12A TO SUCH ACT.”  

 



Public Participation 
Members of the public may address the Committee on any non-procedural matter listed on this agenda.  
Addresses shall not last longer than three minutes.  Committee members may then ask questions of the 
speaker.  No prior notice is required prior to the commencement of the meeting of a request to address the 
Committee. 

 

  
SUPPLEMENTARY AGENDA 
 
Exempted Under Schedule, 12A of L.Govt Act 1972, Para No: 3  

 

  
10. INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE   Chris Dickens 

(PWC) 
 (PRIVATE Part of Item 7 above attached) 
  

 

  



 
Audit Committee Minutes - Monday, 19 March 2012 

NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

Monday, 19 March 2012 
 
PRESENT: Councillor Hallam (Chair); Councillor Oldham (Deputy Chair); Councillors 

Gowen, Lynch, Nunn, Palethorpe, Subbarayan and Glynane  
 

 
1. APOLOGIES 

An apology for absence was received from Councillor Beardsworth, Councillor Glynane 
susbituted.  
 

2. MINUTES 

The Minutes of the meeting held on 9 January 2012 were confirmed and signed by the Chair 
as a true record.  
 

3. DEPUTATIONS / PUBLIC ADDRESSES 

There were none.  
 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were none.  
 

5. MATTERS OF URGENCY WHICH BY REASON OF SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES 
THE CHAIR IS OF THE OPINION SHOULD BE CONSIDERED 

There were none.  
 

6. BUSINESS CONTINUITY UPDATE 

The Committee considered a report detaining an update on progress with the management 
of Business Continuity across the borough council. 
 
The main points of the discussion were as follows: - 
 

• Business Continuity Management (BCM) is the process that supports the Council 
in delivering its critical services and functions in the event of an unexpected 
emergency or disruption. 

 

• The Borough Council is itself a category 1 responder under the Civil Contingencies 
Act. 

 

• The functions are categorised CF1, CFf2, CF3  based on how quickly the service 
would need to be up and running. 

 

• There is a difference between business continuity and emergency planning. If 
there was an incident that required an emergency planning response that would 
probably be coordinated through the County Council emergency planning unit. 
Business continuity is about keeping Borough critical functions running in 
unexpected circumstances. 

 

• It was noted that the plan needed to be updated to reflect that some functions were 
no longer carried out by the council and also to reflect the recent management 
restructure. 

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



 
Audit Committee Minutes - Monday, 19 March 2012 

 

• Procedures are tested through either desktop exercises unless there has been a 
real incident. This is the most effective method of testing, one of the most 
significant recent incidents was the IT and telecoms failure in November 2011. 

 

• There are opportunities for mutual aid  between partners such as the County 
Council which may help to keep services functioning, but that would be subject to 
the nature of the emergency as in some cases the partners themselves might also 
be affected. 

 

• Communications on potential issues are highlighted through Government briefings 
and also through the local resilience forums.  

 
RESOLVED 
 
The draft Corporate continuity Plan, Council’s business continuity critical functions and 
recent developments in Business Continuity Management be noted.  
 

7. STRATEGIC HOUSING SERVICES RISK REGISTER 

The Committee considered the latest Strategic Housing risk register. 
 
The main points of the discussion were as follows: - 
 

• Strategic Housing provides services to some of the Councils’ most vulnerable 
customers, key services have been examined and some potential risks identified. 
The Strategic risk register details actions that have been taken to minimise 
identified risks. 

 

• There has been an increase in the numbers of homeless, rough sleepers and 
people seeking urgent assistance with their housing needs. This has led to more 
people coming to the One Stop Shop for housing advice. 

 

• There will be further challenges to overcome when the impact of the changes to 
the welfare legalisation is felt. This may mean that the strategic risk register would 
need to be reviewed. 

 

• Nationally all Councils are reporting increased numbers of homelessness and are 
examining alternative actions, such as the use of temporary accommodation or 
private accommodation. 

 
RESOLVED: - The Strategic Housing Risk Register is noted.  
 

8. THE WELFARE REFORM BILL 

The Committee considered a report on the Welfare Reform Bill. 
 
It was agreed that this item should be considered alongside the Strategic Housing Service 
Risk Register. 
 
The main points of the discussion were as follows: - 
 

• This is now the Welfare Reform Act. Detailed legalisation and guidance will follow. 
 

• In general the aim is to combine all out of work income related benefits (including 
Housing Benefit) with tax credits to one source of help (Universal Credit) This 

Page 2



 
Audit Committee Minutes - Monday, 19 March 2012 

hopes to strengthen work incentives, make benefits simpler and reduce error and 
fraud. 

 

• The transition from the old system to Universal Credit will take place over four 
years. The timetable for new claims for out of work claimants commences in 
October 2013. 

 

• Changes to the Housing Benefit (HB) scheme were introduced in April 
2011,although the majority of existing claimants were afforded transitional 
protection, which has now ended. It is anticipated that because of the reductions in 
the levels of HB payments some tenants may find that their rent becomes 
unaffordable during 2012/13 and will have to draw on other income to avoid rent 
arrears or move to cheaper accommodation. It is therefore anticipated that the 
level of rent arrears may increase and the number of those presenting as 
homeless could rise. 

 

• The current Council Tax Benefit Scheme is being replaced by localised support 
administered by councils. Local Authorities will have greater discretion on how they 
provide support for those on low incomes, however there will be an overall funding 
reduction of 10%. Data is being gathered regarding caseload, which will help to 
identify the moist vulnerable groups. It is likely that those who will receive the least 
benefit will be those of working age. 

 

• Claimants will receive a single direct benefit payment, which will include their 
housing payments, which would previously have been made direct to the landlord. 
There have been concerns nationally that this will lead to higher levels of debt. 

 

• There are two planning boards, the Welfare Reform programme board and the 
project board working through the changes and their implementation. 

 

• Concern was expressed as to how those people affected were being kept informed 
of the changes. All those who have already been affected by HB changes have 
been identified and received information to help them mange their situation and 
make appropriate choices. There has also been strong liaison with the strategic 
housing officers. 

 

• A question was raised about how this might affect people who wished to downsize 
but were unable to through no fault of their own .It was confirmed that the Housing 
Allocations Policy was being reviewed to try to ensure that people in this situation 
would not be adversely affected. Downsizing would be given additional weight. 
Only those people under 60 were affected by the new under occupancy rules. 

 
 
RESOLVED: - 
 
1. That the Committee notes the implementation of the April 2011 changes to Housing 
Benefit and the interim position with Welfare Reform. 
2. That the Committee notes the potential risks and service delivery implications for the 
council arising from the welfare reforms, which have been described as the most significant 
changes to the benefits system in over 60 years. 
3.That the Committee notes that it will receive further reports in the autumn and as more 
detailed information becomes available. 
 
  
 

Page 3



 
Audit Committee Minutes - Monday, 19 March 2012 

9. SCHEDULE OF RESERVES AND  RISK ASSESSMENT OF RESERVES 

The Committee considered a report on the schedule of reserves and risk assessment of 
reassessment of reserves. 
 
The main points of discussion were as follows:- 
 

• Audit Committee at its January 2012 meeting requested a report on reserves. 
 

• Reserves may be cash or non cash. A report on the adequacy of reserves is made  
to Council each year by the Chief Finance Officer. This is achieved by undertaking 
a risk assessment of the General Fund budget and reviewing the earmarked 
reserves as part of the budget process. 

 

• A further report will be submitted once the final year accounts have been 
approved. 

 

• It was pointed out Reserves are interlinked with General Fund balances. 
 

• A question was asked as to whether the £100,000 budget for helping people 
through difficult times was required. It was commented that this was for specific 
works with partners on pilot schemes and it would be reviewed. 

 
 
RESOLVED: - 

1. the schedule and risk assessment of reserves be noted. 
2. A further report be made to Committee once the final accounts have been agreed.  

 

10. CORPORATE DEBT - PROGRESS AND AGE DEBT ANALYSIS. 

The Committee considered a report giving an analysis of debt and the age of outstanding 
debt across Northampton borough Council. 
 
The main points of discussion were as follows: - 
 

• The progress on collecting debt was welcomed. It was noted that the latest daily 
figures showed the levels were still decreasing. 

 

• There were concerns that there will be an increase in the level of debt as the 
welfare reform changes work through the system. 

 

• The Council now looks at the overall indebtedness of a person when making 
repayment agreements. Those debts that have priority will be the ones related to 
keeping people in their homes or their liberty. 

 

• There will be a review of the Write off policy. 
 

• It was emphasised that these performance figures have been achieved during very 
difficult financial constraints. 

 

• The Internal Auditors have recently completed an audit, which endorsed the 
progress that had been made and showed that we should have confidence in the 
controls and measures in place. 

 
 

Page 4



 
Audit Committee Minutes - Monday, 19 March 2012 

RESOLVED THAT- the latest analysis of debt be noted.  
 

11. ANTI FRAUD ANNUAL REPORT 

The Committee considered a report detailing a summary of anti fraud activity in 2011/12. 
 
The main points of the discussion were as follows:- 
 

• Performance figures are broadly comparable with those of the previous year. 
 

• In 2011/12 the fraud team have done work with the housing services to examine 
the problem of sub letting. There has also been work with electoral registration and 
partners over issues such as Trading Standards. 

 

• Welfare reform will start to have an impact on staff in 2012/13.Funding for the 
introduction of the proposed Single Fraud Investigation Service has not yet been 
agreed. It is likely however that staff will come largely from local authorities. There 
is recognition that the in house benefit fraud team already investigates corporate 
fraud.  

 

• There will be a reduction in the number of investigators in 2012/13 due to maternity 
leave and a temporary arrangement has been made with Daventry District Council 
to cover this. 

 

• Most fraud referrals come through the housing benefit matching and checking 
process although some are referred by other agencies or members of the public. 

 

• Statistics indicate that approximately 2-3% of the national caseload is fraudulent. 
 

• The welfare reform aims to introduce a simpler system with just one source of 
benefit, this should reduce fraud opportunities. 

 
 
RESOLVED :-that the report be noted.  
 

12. CAR PARK INCOME TRENDS 

The Committee considered a report giving and update on car parking income and usage 
across the Borough Car Parks. 
 
The main points of discussion were as follows: - 
 

• Audit Committee had requested regular updates on the usage and income of the 
Council’s Car Parks as they identified car parking income as a significant risk. The 
Committee also wished to monitor risks relating to the decision to increase the 
rates for the use of standard car parks to the same as premier car parks taken as a 
part of the Budget setting in February 2012. 

 

• There was concern that the changes in car parking fees had been an exercise that 
was intended to bring people into town, however they were not the car parks that 
appeared to be doing the best. It was commented that from the income point of 
view the car parks had to be considered as an “overall” picture. 

 

• Car park usage was regularly monitored and changes in income. Reserves are 
also regularly monitored and could be adjusted if required. 

 

Page 5



 
Audit Committee Minutes - Monday, 19 March 2012 

• It is very difficult to say why some car parks are more popular than others. It can 
depend on events bringing people into certain areas, or people parking indifferent 
places when events make it more difficult to enter the centre of town. It was hoped 
that there would be good use of car parks in 2012 with the national events such as 
the Olympics and Diamond Jubilee encouraging local activities. 

 
 
RESOLVED:- 

1. That the Car Parking Income and usage to the end of January 2012 be noted. 
2. A further report be bought back once the scheme had been in operation for a year.  

 

13. ANTI-FRAUD AND CORRUPTION POLICY AND STRATEGY AND WHISTLE 
BLOWING POLICY 

The Committee considered a report on the Anti Fraud Policy and Strategy and the Whistle 
Blowing Policy. 
 
The main points of the discussion were as follows: - 
 

• The Policy is refreshed every year and has recently been expanded to include 
officer interests and gifts and hospitality. 

 

• The Whistle Blowing Policy tries to encourage employees to draw attention to 
incidences of fraud and malpractice. The Policy was endorsed and disseminated 
by Management Board, which did lead to some disclosures, which have been 
investigated. Work is ongoing to revise the inclusion of this information in the 
Councils induction programme. 

 

• In November 2011 the internal auditors carried out an Anti Fraud health check, 
which concluded that overall the Council had a number of good anti fraud policies 
and programmes in place and senior managers recognised the importance of 
those. There were some areas where work was suggested to strengthen this work 
and those suggestions are being considered. 

 
. 
RESOLVED: -That the Anti- Fraud and Whistle Blowing policies be noted.  
 

14. PERFORMANCE MONITORING 

The Committee considered the Finance and Performance report as submitted to Cabinet on 
7th March 2012plus the additional appendices that support the figures in that report. 
 
The main points of the discussion were as follows: - 
 

• Concern was expressed that the figures for serious and acquisitive crime were 
increasing, despite a general tendency for crime figures to be in decline. It was 
queried whether this had any connection with the switching off of the street lights 
however it was stated that there had been an independent study done which 
showed that there was no link between level of crime and street lighting. 

 

• As discussed in previous items Housing issues relating to the difficult financial 
climate were of concern. There were measures being introduced to try and 
mitigate these for example using HRA properties for temporary accommodation 
rather than bed and breakfast. 

 

• Under Regeneration and Development Members asked how it was decided which 

Page 6



 
Audit Committee Minutes - Monday, 19 March 2012 

properties should be retained and which sold. They were advised that there is an 
Asset Management Board, which looks at properties and their investment returns. 
There is a reserve to cover under performing properties. Charges are related to 
local conditions. 

 

• Market income is lower than anticipated. Rents have not been raised for a while. It 
has proved difficult to attract new traders. 

 
 
RESOLVED: - 
1. That the report be noted. 
2. That the independent study on crime showing lack of a link to street lighting be circulated 
to Committee.   
 

15. INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE 

The Committee considered a report on internal audit progress for 2011/12 and the draft plan 
for 2012/13. 
 
The main points of discussion were as follows: - 
 

• The 2011/12 programme is 90% complete so is on target. 
 

• The audits for Housing Rents and Development Governance found no control 
weaknesses. The Core Financial systems were also very well controlled. Payroll 
was the only system not rated as low risk and a payroll project is being undertaken 
which addresses the issues found in the audit. 

 
RESOLVED:-The report be noted.  
 

The meeting concluded at 8:00 pm 
 
 

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

AGENDA STATUS: PUBLIC 
 

 
Audit Committee Meeting Date: 
 
Policy Document: 
 
 

Directorate: 
 
 

Accountable Cabinet Member:  
 

  
21st May 2012 
 
No 
 
Resources 
 
Cllr Alan Bottwood 
 

 

 
1. Purpose 

1.1 To present to the committee the 2011/12 audit plan along with the latest 
progress report. 

 

2. Recommendations 

 
2.1 To note the2011/12 audit plan. 

2.2 To note the progress of external audit plans as presented to the Committee by 
the Council’s external auditors. 

 

3. Issues and Choices 

 
3.1 Report Background 

3.1.1 The Council’s external auditors, the Audit Commission, audit the Statement of 
Accounts and major grant claim and returns.  They report to the audit 
committee progress against plan and any issues arising. 

3.2 Issues 

Annual Audit Plan 

3.2.1 The 2011/12 audit plan sets out the work for the 2011/12 audit. The plan is 
based on the Audit Commission’s risk-based approach to audit planning. 

Report Title External Audit Update 

Appendices: 2 

Agenda Item 6

Page 9



3.2.2 The audit plan sets out the Audit Commission’s responsibilities in relation to 
the audit and identifies areas, in their opinion, could pose significant risks.  
These are the Joint Environmental Services contract and HRA Reform. 

3.2.3 The audit plan also sets out the audit commission fees. 

Progress Report 
3.2.4 The purpose of the progress report is to provide the Audit Committee with an 

update on the progress in delivering the responsibilities as the authority’s 
external auditor.  It also includes an update on the externalisation of the Audit 
Practice. 

3.3 Choices (Options) 
3.3.1 To comment on any matters arising from the two reports. 

 

4. Implications (including financial implications) 

 
4.1 Policy 

4.1.1 None. 

4.2 Resources and Risk 

4.2.1 There are no specific resources and risk implications arising from this report. 

4.3 Legal 

4.3.1 There are no specific legal implications arising from this report. 

4.4 Equality 

4.4.1 There are no specific equalities implications arising from this report. 

4.5 Consultees (Internal and External) 

4.5.1 None. 

4.6 How the Proposals deliver Priority Outcomes 

4.6.1 Protecting and enhancing the reputation of Northampton Borough Council. 

4.7 Other Implications 

4.7.1 Not applicable 

 
5. Background Papers 

Appendix 1 – 2011/12 Annual Audit Plan 

Appendix 2 – Progress Report 

Isabell Procter 
Director of Resources, ext 8757 

Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

AGENDA STATUS: PUBLIC 
 

 
Audit Committee Meeting Date: 
 
Policy Document: 
 
 

Directorate: 
 
 

Accountable Cabinet Member:  
 

  
21st May 2012 
 
No 
 
Resources 
 
Cllr Alan Bottwood 
 

 
 

1. Purpose 

1.1 To present Audit Committee with the Finance Report to 29th February 2012. 

1.2 To update the Audit Committee with the year end position on car parking 
income and usage. 

1.3 To update the Audit Committee on the latest position in relation to the 
Council’s outstanding debts and recovery. 

 

2. Recommendations 

 
2.1 To consider the contents of the Finance Reports: 

• General Fund Revenue (Appendix 1); 

• General Fund Capital (Appendix 2) 

• HRA Revenue (Appendix 3) 

• HRA Capital (Appendix 4) 

2.2 To note the year end position on car parking income and usage (Appendix 5) 

2.3 To note the latest position in relation to the Council’s outstanding debts and 
recovery.(Appendix 6) 

2.4 To consider whether Audit Committee require additional information in order to 
perform their governance role. 

 

 

Report Title Finance Monitoring Report 

Appendices: 6 

Agenda Item 7

Page 47



 

3. Issues and Choices 

 
3.1 Report Background 

3.1.1 A Finance and Performance report is taken to Cabinet on a quarterly basis 
(including the out-turn report).  Finance reports are published monthly on the 
intranet with the exception of the beginning of the financial year and the final 
months of the financial year. 

3.1.2 Audit Committee has asked to receive these reports.  These will be brought to 
the first available Audit Committee following report production. 

3.1.3 The audit committee has also asked for more detailed information in relation to 
car parking income and usage and debt recovery.  Previously these have 
formed separate reports on the agenda and the committee has noted the 
progress.  At the committee’s last meeting the committee requested that a 
more summarised information was brought to the committee and included in 
the finance report. 

 

3.2 Issues 

3.2.1 The significant financial variances are outlined in the following appendices: 

• Appendix 1 – General Fund Revenue Report to the End of February 2012 

• Appendix 2 – General Fund Capital Report to the End of February 2012 

• Appendix 3 – HRA Revenue Report to the End of February 2012 

• Appendix 4 – HRA Capital Report to the End of February 2012 

3.2.2 The graphs and commentary at Appendix 5 shows the position for car parking 
usage and income to 31st March 2012.   

3.2.3 The managed debt analysis and commentary are shown at appendix 6. 

 

3.3 Choices (Options) 

3.3.1 None 

. 

4. Implications (including financial implications) 

 
4.1 Policy 

4.1.1 There are no specific policy implications arising from this report. 

 

4.2 Resources and Risk 

4.2.1 The reports at Appendices 1-4 detail any resource issues facing the Council 
from its forecast financial position for 2011/12. 

4.2.2 The appendix 5 shows greater detail with regard to car parking income. 

4.2.3 The appendix 6 shows the year end position with regard to the management 
of the Council’s debt. 

Page 48



 
4.3 Legal 

4.3.1 There are no specific legal implications arising from this report. 

 

4.4 Equality 

4.4.1 There are no specific equalities implications arising from this report. 

 

4.5 Consultees (Internal and External) 

4.5.1 None at this stage.   

 

4.6 How the Proposals deliver Priority Outcomes 

4.6.1 Protecting and enhancing the reputation of Northampton Borough Council. 

 

4.7 Other Implications 

4.7.1 Not applicable 

 

5. Background Papers 

Appendix 1 – General Fund Revenue Report to the End of February 2012 

Appendix 2 – General Fund Capital Report to the End of February 2012 

Appendix 3 – HRA Revenue Report to the End of February 2012 

Appendix 4 – HRA Capital Report to the End of February 2012 

Appendix 5 – Car parking usage and income to 31st March 2012 

Appendix 6 – Managed Debt Analysis to 31st March 2012 

 

 

Isabell Procter 
Director of Resources, ext 8757 

Page 49



Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 R
E

P
O

R
T

S
 (

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
)

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 Y

E
A

R
 2

0
1
1
/2

0
1
2

P
E

R
IO

D
 1

1
 (

F
e
b

ru
a
ry

 2
0
1
2
)

D
iv

is
io

n

R
e
v
is

e
d

B
u

d
g

e
t

F
o

re
c
a
s
t

F
o

re
c
a
s
t

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

R
A

G

S
ta

tu
s

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

£
0
0
0
's

£
0
0
0
's

£
0
0
0
's

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

2
0
0

1
8
1

-1
9

G

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
s

2
0
0

1
8
1

-1
9

G

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
L
S

P
7
2

5
5

-1
6

G

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

N
o
rt

h
a
m

p
to

n
 L

o
c
a
l 
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

7
2

5
5

-1
6

G

A
s
s
is

ta
n
t 

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

3
8
0

3
0
4

-7
6

G
S

a
v
in

g
s
 i
n
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

b
u
d
g
e
ts

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
is

 a
re

a
, 

n
o
n
e
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
ir
 o

w
n

C
iv

ic
 a

n
d
 M

a
y
o
ra

l 
E

x
p
e
n
s
e
s

9
5

1
0
1

7
G

O
v
e
rv

ie
w

 &
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y

4
7

4
5

-2
G

C
o
u
n
c
ill

o
r 

&
 M

a
n
a
g
e
ri
a
l 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

5
4
1

5
1
0

-3
1

G
S

a
v
in

g
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 i
n
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 a
llo

w
a
n
c
e
s
. 

T
h
is

 h
a
p
p
e
n
e
d
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
re

d
u
c
in

g
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

C
a
b
in

e
t 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 b

o
u

n
d

a
ry

re
v
ie

w
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 t

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

C
o
u
n
c
ill

o
rs

.

C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s

1
8
8

1
5
8

-3
0

G
S

a
v
in

g
s
 o

n
 t

h
e
 a

d
v
e
rt

is
in

g
 a

n
d
 p

u
b
lic

it
y
 b

u
d
g
e
t.

E
le

c
to

ra
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

4
1
5

3
1
1

-1
0
4

B

A
s
 t

h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

E
le

c
ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 h

e
ld

 i
n
 c

o
m

b
in

a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h

 t
h
e
 R

e
fe

re
n
d
u
m

 o
n
 t

h
e
 U

K
 P

a
rl
ia

m
e
n
ta

ry
 V

o
ti
n
g
 S

y
s
te

m
 a

n
d
 c

o
s
ts

 w
e
re

 s
h
a
re

d
 

e
q
u
a
lly

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t

h
e
s
e
 t

w
o
 a

re
a
s
, 

w
it
h
 t

h
e
 R

e
fe

re
n
d
u
m

 c
o
s
ts

 b
e
in

g
 f

u
n
d
e
d
 b

y
 c

e
n
tr

a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t.

 T
h
e
re

fo
re

, 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 e

le
c
ti
o

n
 c

o
s
ts

 

w
e
re

 j
u
s
t 

u
n
d
e
r 

h
a
lf
 o

f 
th

e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
fo

re
c
a
s
t.

D
e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

1
4
9

1
1
4

-3
5

G
S

a
v
in

g
s
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
v
a
c
a
n
t 

p
o
s
ts

 t
h
ro

u
g

h
o
u
t 

th
e
 y

e
a
r

A
s
s
is

ta
n
t 

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e

1
,8

1
5

1
,5

4
3

-2
7
3

B

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 c

h
a
n
g
e

3
7
7

3
2
2

-5
4

G
S

a
v
in

g
s
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 

lo
w

e
r 

c
o
s
ts

 i
n
c
u
rr

e
d
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 p

u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 P

la
n
 (

£
2
7
k
) 

a
n
d
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
e
 c

o
s
t 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 a

s
 a

 

re
s
u
lt
 o

f 
v
a
c
a
n
t 

p
o
s
ts

 (
£
2
8
k
).

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 C

h
a
n
g
e

3
7
7

3
2
2

-5
4

G

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
P

o
lic

y
 &

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 E

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

7
9

7
8

-1
G

P
o
lic

y
9

8
-1

G

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 a

n
d
 O

th
e
r 

G
ra

n
ts

1
,1

6
1

1
,1

4
1

-2
0

G

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

3
9
7

4
4
3

4
6

G
A

n
 o

v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
c
u
rr

e
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 t

ra
n
s
fe

r 
p
ro

je
c
t

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
s

3
3
2

2
9
3

-3
9

G
S

a
v
in

g
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
e
 r

e
la

te
d
 c

o
s
ts

 a
n
d
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 f

ro
m

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 C

e
n
tr

e
s
 i
s
 h

ig
h
e

r 
th

a
n
 b

u
d
g
e
te

d
. 

E
m

e
rg

e
n
c
y
 P

la
n
n
in

g
4
5

5
2

7
G

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
P

o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 E

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

2
,0

2
3

2
,0

1
5

-8
G

4
,4

8
6

4
,1

1
7

-3
7
0

B

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 &

 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
3
1

2
2
5

-6
G

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n

2
3
1

2
2
5

-6
G

A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

1
,6

3
0

1
,5

5
1

-7
9

G
T

h
is

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

s
a
v
in

g
 p

ri
m

a
ri
ly

 r
e
fl
e
c
ts

 N
N

D
R

 r
e
fu

n
d
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 a

p
p
e
a
l.

O
th

e
r 

B
u
ild

in
g
s
 &

 L
a
n
d

-1
,4

2
3

-1
,6

7
8

-2
5
4

B

In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 r

e
n
ta

l 
fe

e
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 (

£
2
3
1
k
),

 l
a
rg

e
ly

 d
u
e
 t

o
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
re

n
t 

in
c
o
m

e
 (

b
a
c
k
 d

a
te

d
 5

 y
e
a
rs

) 
b
e
in

g
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 a

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
 

fr
o
m

 g
ro

u
n
d
 r

e
n
t 

re
v
ie

w
 a

rb
it
ra

ti
o
n
 (

£
3
3
2
k
),

 o
ff

s
e
t 

b
y
 l
o
s
s
 o

f 
in

c
o

m
e
 d

u
e
 t

o
 v

a
c
a
n
t 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 £

1
0
1
k
. 

T
h
e
re

 h
a
v
e
 a

ls
o
 b

e
e
n
 v

a
ri

o
u
s

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 m
a
d
e
 t

o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 e

n
e
rg

y
 c

o
s
ts

 r
e
s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 a

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

s
a
v
in

g
 o

f 
(£

5
6
k
).

 T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 

b
e
in

g
 v

a
c
a
n
t 

(w
h
ic

h
 a

re
 n

o
rm

a
lly

 l
e
a
s
e
d
 o

u
t)

 r
e
s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 £

2
6
k
 o

f 
N

N
D

R
 c

o
s
ts

. 
T

h
e
re

 a
re

 a
ls

o
 o

th
e
r 

m
is

c
e
lla

n
e
o
u
s
 v

a
ri
a
n
c
e
s
.

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 &

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

9
0

9
1

0
G

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 &

 I
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t

6
5
8

6
9
2

3
4

G
T

h
e
 v

a
ri
a
n
c
e
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
e
 c

o
s
ts

 b
e
in

g
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
a
n
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
. 

T
h
is

 i
s
 m

a
in

ly
 d

u
e
 t

o
 p

o
s
ts

 n
o
t 

b
e
c
o
m

in
g
 v

a
c
a
n
t 

a
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 (

v
a
c
a
n
c
y

fa
c
to

r)
, 

th
e
 r

e
g
ra

d
in

g
 o

f 
s
o
m

e
 p

o
s
ts

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

o
f 

th
e
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 n

o
t 

b
e
in

g
 f

u
lly

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 i
n
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
1
.

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

1
7

1
7

0
G

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 C

o
o
rd

in
a
ti
o
n

5
5

0
G

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

9
7
7

6
7
9

-2
9
8

B

B
u
ild

in
g
 C

o
n
tr

o
l

1
1

2
1

9
G

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

C
o
n
tr

o
l

3
2
8

1
7
0

-1
5
9

B
T

h
e
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t 

p
ri
m

a
ri
ly

 r
e
fl
e
c
ts

 t
h
e

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 f

e
e
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 f

o
r 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

C
o
n
tr

o
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
.

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
P

la
n
n
in

g
1
0
9

1
0
8

-1
G

J
o
in

t 
P

la
n
n
in

g
 U

n
it
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r

2
8
6

2
8
6

0
G

P
la

n
n
in

g
 &

 R
e
g
e
n
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

2
7
5

2
6
7

-7
G

P
la

n
n
in

g
 P

o
lic

y
 &

 C
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n

7
6
8

7
0
9

-5
8

G
S

a
v
in

g
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 h

o
ld

in
g
 p

o
s
ts

 v
a
c
a
n
t.

 T
h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 f

u
n
d
in

g
 f

o
r 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
im

p
a
c
t 

a
s
s
e
s
m

e
n
ts

. 
 A

ls
o
, 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 t

o
 r

u
n
n
in

g
 c

o
s
ts

 f
o
r 

re
g
io

n
a
l 
p
a
rk

s
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
.

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
P

la
n
n
in

g
1
,7

7
7

1
,5

6
1

-2
1
6

B

S
e
rv

ic
e
 A

re
a

Page 51



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 R
E

P
O

R
T

S
 (

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
)

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 Y

E
A

R
 2

0
1
1
/2

0
1
2

P
E

R
IO

D
 1

1
 (

F
e
b

ru
a
ry

 2
0
1
2
)

D
iv

is
io

n

R
e
v
is

e
d

B
u

d
g

e
t

F
o

re
c
a
s
t

F
o

re
c
a
s
t

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

R
A

G

S
ta

tu
s

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

£
0
0
0
's

£
0
0
0
's

£
0
0
0
's

S
e
rv

ic
e
 A

re
a

2
,9

8
5

2
,4

6
5

-5
2
0

B

N
o
n
 D

is
tr

ib
u
te

d
 C

o
s
ts

4
,0

5
7

4
,0

5
7

0
G

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
4
,0

5
7

4
,0

5
7

0
G

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 &

 S
u
p
p
o
rt

6
6
4

6
6
7

3
G

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

F
in

a
n
c
e
 &

 S
u
p
p
o
rt

6
6
4

6
6
7

3
G

H
u
m

a
n
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

8
8
9

9
2
7

3
9

G
T

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 s

ta
ff

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 

to
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 d

e
le

v
o
p
m

e
n
t 

w
o
rk

 t
o
 e

n
a
b
le

 r
e
s
tr

u
c
tu

ri
n
g
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 t

o
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
.

S
in

g
le

 S
ta

tu
s

5
0

2
0

-3
0

G
S

a
v
in

g
s
 i
n
 S

ta
ff

 a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 H

R
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
, 

o
ff

s
e

tt
in

g
 c

o
s
ts

 a
b
o
v
e
.

T
ra

in
in

g
 &

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

1
7
5

1
7
5

0
G

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
H

u
m

a
n
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

1
,1

1
4

1
,1

2
3

9
G

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

1
,4

8
9

1
,4

8
2

-8
G

A
u
d
it

3
9
2

3
3
8

-5
4

G
L
o
w

e
r 

p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 b

o
th

 I
n
te

rn
a
l 
a
n
d
 E

x
te

rn
a
l 
A

u
d
it
 t

h
a
n
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 d

is
c
o
u
n
ts

 a
n
d
 r

e
fu

n
d

s
).

In
v
e
s
tm

e
n
ts

8
5

6
1

-2
4

G

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
F

in
a
n
c
e

8
4

8
4

0
G

E
x
c
h
e
q
u
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e

4
9
0

5
2
1

3
1

G
A

d
d
it
o
n
a
l 
c
o
s
ts

 a
ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 s
e
lf
s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

a
y
ro

ll 
p
ro

je
c
t 

w
h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 f

in
a
n
c
e
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 s

a
v
in

g
s
.

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t

1
6
5

1
6
7

3
G

C
o
n
c
e
s
s
io

n
a
ry

 F
a
re

s
0

4
8

4
8

G
T

h
e
s
e
 a

re
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
id

u
a
l 
c
o
s
ts

 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e
 c

lo
s
u
re

 o
f 

th
e
 c

o
n
c
e
s
s
io

n
a
ry

 f
a
re

s
 s

c
h
e
m

e
.

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
F

in
a
n
c
e

2
,7

0
6

2
,7

0
2

-3
G

A
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
v
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

4
6
6

4
9
3

2
7

G

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 I

C
T

8
4

8
7

4
G

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

A
c
c
e
s
s

1
,5

0
7

1
,5

8
3

7
6

A

T
h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

n
 o

v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

n
 a

g
e
n
c
y
 s

ta
ff

 i
n
 t

h
e
 C

o
n
ta

c
t 

C
e
n
tr

e
. 

 T
h
is

 i
s
 a

 f
ro

n
t 

lin
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
ta

ff
 a

re
 r

e
q
u
ir

e
d
 t

o
 a

n
s
w

e
r 

th
e
 p

h
o
n
e
s
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 

th
e
 d

e
m

a
n
d
s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

u
b
lic

. 
 T

h
e
s
e
 c

o
s
ts

 a
re

 b
e
in

g
 f

u
n
d
e
d
 f

ro
m

 e
ls

e
w

h
e
re

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 D

iv
is

io
n
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

is
 l
o
o
k
in

g
 

a
t 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
w

a
y
s
 t

o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t

h
e
 o

v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
. 

P
ri
n
t 

U
n
it

2
3
5

2
5
9

2
5

G

O
ff

ic
e
 A

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n

1
,1

3
8

1
,0

2
9

-1
0
9

B
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 (
£
6
7
k
) 

s
a
v
in

g
 d

u
e
 t

o
 a

n
 N

N
D

R
 r

e
b
a
te

 f
o
r 

th
e
 G

u
ild

h
a
ll 

a
n
d
 (

£
4
4
k
) 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 o

n
 c

le
a
n

in
g
 c

o
s
ts

.

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 T

e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y

2
,3

6
7

2
,3

6
7

0
G

T
e
le

p
h
o
n
e
s

2
4
8

2
4
7

-1
G

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 I

C
T

6
,0

4
4

6
,0

6
5

2
1

G

B
e
n
e
fi
ts

-5
8

-1
3
3

-7
5

G
T

h
e
s
e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 r
e
fl
e
c
t 

lo
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 a

n
ti
c
p
a
te

d
 c

o
s
ts

 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 r

e
n
t 

a
llo

w
a
n
c
e
s
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 

p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

.

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
R

e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 &

 B
e
n
e
fi
ts

8
6

8
5

0
G

R
e
v
e
n
u
e
s

3
2
0

3
0
7

-1
3

G

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
R

e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 B

e
n
e
fi
ts

3
4
8

2
6
0

-8
8

G

1
4
,9

3
2

1
4
,8

7
4

-5
8

G

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

H
o
u
s
in

g
1
7
9

1
6
4

-1
5

G

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

H
o
u
s
in

g
1
7
9

1
6
4

-1
5

G

C
a
ll 

C
a
re

-2
1
5

-4
9

1
6
6

R
T

h
is

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

p
ri
m

a
ri
ly

 r
e
fl
e
c
ts

 a
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 d

u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 l
o
s
s
 o

f 
C

a
ll 

C
a
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 t
o
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
.

H
o
m

e
 C

h
o
ic

e
 &

 R
e
s
e
tt

le
m

e
n
t

4
3
8

3
9
8

-4
1

G
T

h
e
s
e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 r

e
la

te
 t

o
 a

 w
id

e
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 

T
h
e
 l
a
rg

e
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
s
e
 i
s
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
lo

w
e
r 

th
a
n
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 c

o
s
ts

 o
n
 t

h
e
 

fu
rn

it
u
re

 a
n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
.

H
o
u
s
in

g
 O

p
ti
o
n
s

3
8
6

3
5
8

-2
8

G

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 N

e
e
d
s

9
4

1
0
3

8
G

T
ra

v
e
lle

rs
 S

it
e
s

9
-6

-1
6

G

P
ri
v
a
te

 S
e
c
to

r 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 S

o
lu

ti
o
n
s

-1
7
6

-1
5
6

1
9

G

H
o
u
s
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y

2
5

-1
2

-3
7

G

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 H
o
u
s
in

g
5
6
2

6
3
4

7
2

A

7
4
0

7
9
7

5
7

A

L
a
n
d
 C

h
a
rg

e
s

-4
5

-6
0

-1
6

G

L
e
g
a
l

6
9
8

7
6
5

6
7

A
T

h
e
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t 

o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 i
s
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 d
u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
a
 l
o
c
u
m

 P
ri
n
c
ip

a
l 
S

o
lic

it
o
r 

to
 c

o
v
e
r 

a
 v

a
c
a
n
t 

p
o
s
t 

a
t 

a
 c

o
s
t 

g
re

a
te

r 
th

a
n
 b

u
d
g
e
te

d
.

B
o
ro

u
g
h
 S

o
lic

it
o
r

6
5
4

7
0
5

5
1

A

Page 52



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 F

IN
A

N
C

IA
L

 R
E

P
O

R
T

S
 (

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
)

F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 Y

E
A

R
 2

0
1
1
/2

0
1
2

P
E

R
IO

D
 1

1
 (

F
e
b

ru
a
ry

 2
0
1
2
)

D
iv

is
io

n

R
e
v
is

e
d

B
u

d
g

e
t

F
o

re
c
a
s
t

F
o

re
c
a
s
t

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

R
A

G

S
ta

tu
s

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

£
0
0
0
's

£
0
0
0
's

£
0
0
0
's

S
e
rv

ic
e
 A

re
a

6
5
4

7
0
5

5
1

A

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

&
 C

u
lt
u
re

2
8
4

1
7
7

-1
0
8

B
T

h
e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 a

re
 m

a
in

ly
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 a

d
m

in
 p

o
s
ts

 b
e
in

g
 h

e
ld

 v
a
c
a
n
t.

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d
 C

u
lt
u
re

2
8
4

1
7
7

-1
0
8

B

L
e
is

u
re

 &
 C

u
lt
u
re

1
,1

8
0

1
,0

9
7

-8
3

G
T

h
is

 s
a
v
in

g
 i
s
 m

a
in

ly
 a

tt
ri
b
u
ta

b
le

 t
o
 a

 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
in

s
u
ra

n
c
e
s
 r

e
la

te
d
 t

o
 t

h
is

 s
e
rv

ic
e
.

M
u
s
e
u
m

s
6
6
5

6
7
1

6
G

A
rt

s
 a

n
d
 O

th
e
r 

A
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
4
4

3
9

-5
G

U
n
it
y
 L

e
is

u
re

3
7

6
7

3
0

G
T

h
is

 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 

is
 m

a
d
e
 u

p
 o

f 
a
 f

e
w

 v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
s
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n

 t
o
 t

h
e
 t

ra
n
s
fe

r 
o
f 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 l
e
is

u
re

 t
ru

s
t.

 

L
e
is

u
re

 a
n
d
 C

u
lt
u
re

1
,9

2
5

1
,8

7
4

-5
1

G

N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
S

e
rv

6
,8

2
1

7
,1

8
3

2
5
1

R

T
h
is

 i
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
c
o
s
ts

 i
n
c
u
rr

e
d
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 t

h
e
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

th
e
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 C

o
n
tr

a
c
t.

 T
h
e
s
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a
l 

te
m

p
o
ra

ry
 s

ta
ff

 c
o
s
t 

 a
n
d
 o

v
e
rt

im
e
 o

f 
£
2
9
4
k
, 

v
e
h
ic

le
 r

e
p
a
ir
 a

n
d
 h

ir
e
 c

o
s
ts

 o
f 

£
1
1
0
k
, 

p
re

m
is

e
s
 r

e
p
a
ir
s
 a

n
d
 u

ti
lit

y
 c

o
s
ts

 o
f 

£
2
1
5

k
. 

O
ff

s
e

ti
n
g
 t

h
is

 

is
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
in

c
o
m

e
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

fo
r 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 c

re
d
it
s
 o

f 
(£

4
3
2
k
) 

.

N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

6
,8

2
1

7
,0

7
2

2
5
1

R

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
4
6
6

5
0
5

3
9

G
T

h
is

 i
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 a

 w
id

e
 v

a
ri
e
ty

 o
f 

m
in

o
r 

v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 l
o
w

e
r 

fe
e
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 C

C
T

V
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 a

 l
o
w

e
r 

le
v
e

l 
o
f 

v
a
c
a
n
t 

p
o
s
ts

 

th
a
n
 h

a
d
 b

e
e
n
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
.

L
ic

e
n
s
in

g
-2

6
2

-2
8
6

-2
4

G

P
e
s
t 

C
o
n
tr

o
l

2
0

-2
G

C
o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

3
3
1

3
3
4

3
G

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

4
8
2

4
6
7

-1
5

G

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
P

u
b
lic

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

6
9

6
9

0
G

N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 W

a
rd

e
n
s

7
9
4

7
1
9

-7
5

G
T

h
e
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 a

re
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 a
tt

ri
b

u
ta

b
le

 t
o
 v

a
c
a
n
t 

p
o
s
ts

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
.

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
P

u
b
lic

 P
ro

te
c

1
,8

8
3

1
,8

1
0

-7
4

G

E
v
e
n
ts

3
3
2

2
6
6

-6
5

G
A

 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
E

v
e
n
ts

 b
u
d
g
e
ts

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 r

e
s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
s
a
v
in

g
s
 h

a
v
in

g
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
. 

T
h
e
re

 h
a
s
 a

ls
o
 b

e
e
n
 s

o
m

e
 p

la
n
n

e
d

e
v
e
n
ts

 t
h
a
t 

h
a
v
e
 n

o
t 

ta
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
.

T
o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

-2
5

-3
2
2

G
T

h
e
re

 a
re

 a
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
is

 s
e
rv

ic
e
. 

T
h
e
 l
a
rg

e
s
t 

o
f 

th
e
s
e
 r

e
la

te
 t

o
 t

h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
h
a
n
g
in

g
 b

a
s
k
e
ts

, 
a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 

a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
t 

u
p
 o

f 
th

e
 t

o
w

n
 c

e
n
tr

e
 B

ID
.

C
a
r 

P
a
rk

in
g

-2
,2

5
7

-2
,0

6
5

1
9
2

R

T
h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
£
1
5
5
k
 i
n
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

s
 d

a
ily

 t
ic

k
e
t 

in
c
o
m

e
. 

T
h
is

 i
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 2

.3
%

 d
o
w

n
tu

rn
 t

re
n
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 u

s
a
g
e
 o

f 
c
a

r 
p
a

rk
s
 a

n
d
 

b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
b
s
o
rb

in
g
 t

h
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 V

A
T

 r
a
te

. 
 T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 d
e
la

y
 i
n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 c

a
r 

p
a
rk

 c
e
n
tr

a
lis

a
ti
o

n
 p

ro
je

c
t 

d
u
e
 t

o
 

te
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
 r

e
s
tr

a
in

ts
, 

re
s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 a

n
 o

v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

f 
 £

2
8
k
 i
n
 s

ta
ff

in
g
 a

g
e
n
c
y
 c

o
s
ts

. 
 I

n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
is

, 
th

e
 l
o
s
s
 o

f 
in

c
o
m

e
 d

u
e
 t

o
 t

h
e
 o

n
e
 h

o
u
r 

fr
e
e
 p

a
rk

in
g
 p

o
lic

y
 i
s
 f

o
re

c
a
s
t 

to
 b

e
 £

1
8
7
k
 f

o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r;

 t
h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 f

u
n
d
e
d
 f

ro
m

 a
n
 e

a
rm

a
rk

e
d
 r

e
s
e
rv

e
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
re

a
ft

e
r 

h
a
s
 n

o
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n
 t

h
e
 

fo
re

c
a
s
t 

fo
r 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
.

B
u
s
 S

ta
ti
o
n

2
1
1

2
1
2

0
G

M
a
rk

e
ts

-5
1

8
6
0

A
T

h
is

 i
s
 m

a
in

ly
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
re

d
u
c
e
d
 f

e
e
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 f

ro
m

 m
a
rk

e
t 

s
ta

ll 
h

ir
e
. 

T
h
e
re

 h
a
s
 a

ls
o
 b

e
e
n
 a

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 f

ro
m

 c
a
te

ri
n

g
 c

o
n

c
e
s
s
io

n
s
 

o
n
 t

h
e
 M

a
rk

e
t 

S
q
u
a
re

.

H
e
a
d
 o

f 
T

o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

-1
,7

8
9

-1
,5

8
1

2
0
8

R

9
,1

2
4

9
,3

5
0

2
2
7

R

3
2
,9

2
1

3
2
,3

0
8

-6
1
3

B

2
,2

1
8

1
,7

2
8

-4
9
1

B
T

h
is

 i
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 a

n
 o

v
e
r 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 

in
c
o
m

e
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
h
ig

h
e
r 

b
a
la

n
c
e
s
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 y

e
a
r 

d
u
e
 m

a
in

ly
 t

o
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
c
a

rr
y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

, 
s
o
 

h
a
s
 n

o
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

fo
r 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
. 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

ls
o
 a

 t
e
c
h
n
ic

a
l 
fi
n
a
n
c
in

g
 a

d
ju

s
tm

e
n
t 

w
h
ic

h
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

s
 t

o
 t

h
is

 s
a
v
in

g
.

-4
,8

5
6

-4
,7

2
6

1
3
0

R
F

o
re

c
a
s
t 

s
a
v
in

g
s
 w

it
h
in

 C
e
n
tr

a
l 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t

o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t

h
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 

o
f 

c
o
s
ts

 t
h
a
t 

a
re

 a
tt

ri
b
u
ta

b
le

 t
o
 t

h
e
 H

R
A

.

-9
7
4

B

Page 53



Page 54

This page is intentionally left blank



CORPORATE FINANCIAL REPORTS (GENERAL FUND REVENUE) APPENDIX 2

FINANCIAL YEAR 2011/2012

PERIOD 11 (February 2012)

201101 201100-201111 201100-201111 201100-201111 201111 201111 201111

Project Code & Project Description

Approved 

Budget 

February 

2011

Approved 

Changes

In Year

Latest 

Approved 

Budgets

YTD Actual 

Expenditure 

Forecasted 

Year End 

Spend

Forecasted -

Underspend / 

+Overspend 

for Year End

Budget

Carried

Forward

Forecast 

Variance 

RAG

Carry 

forward 

RAG

A B C=A+B D E F=E-C G

£ £ £ £ £ £ £

BA145 - Cliftonville Move; New ways of working 0 741,258 741,258 720,391 741,258 0 0 G G

BA154 - COM; Furniture 0 66,384 66,384 66,503 66,384 0 0 G G

BA155 - COM; Filing & Storage 0 0 0 -250 0 0 0 G G

BA156 - COM; ICT Server Room 0 0 0 -6,342 0 0 0 G G

BA158 - COM; Multifunctional Printers 0 20,000 20,000 0 20,000 0 0 G G

BA159 - COM; Site Exit 0 10,000 10,000 0 10,000 0 0 G G

Total for Corporate 0 837,642 837,642 780,302 837,642 0 0 G G

BA209 - Hosted Debit and Credit Card Payments 0 0 0 0 0 0 39,173 G G

BA730 - Core Financials 0 46,240 46,240 44,798 46,240 0 0 G G

Total for Head of Finance 0 46,240 46,240 44,798 46,240 0 39,173 G R

GF 

Total for Head of Finance 0 46,240 46,240 44,798 46,240 0 39,173 G R

BA122 - Fire Safety Improvement Works 0 74,500 74,500 18,192 74,500 0 45,500 G R

BA131 - Danes Camp Roof Renewal 0 0 0 -30 0 0 0 G G

BA132 - St Crispin Changing Rooms, Toilet, Car park 0 0 0 0 0 0 750,989 G G

BA133 - St Crispin Football Pitches and Play Provision 0 0 0 0 0 0 164,796 G G

BA136 - Water Management Works 100,000 -30,000 70,000 8,701 70,000 0 276,585 G R

BA137 - Improvements to Car Parks 0 150,277 150,277 148,964 150,277 0 0 G G

BA138 - Cemeteries Refurbishment Works 0 31,827 31,827 0 31,827 0 56,744 G R

BA139 - Works to Churchyards (footpaths and boudary walls) 25,000 0 25,000 17,257 25,000 0 0 G G

BA140 - Corporate Properties - DDA Issues 0 2,000 2,000 -2,942 2,000 0 0 G G

BA141 - Unexpected in year Failures 0 0 0 -2 0 0 0 G G

BA142 - Refurbishment of Parks 0 139,197 139,197 138,319 139,197 0 0 G G

BA169 - Northampton Skatepark 250,000 -249,000 1,000 1,293 1,000 0 249,000 G R

BA172 - Shelfleys / Ladybridge Greenspace Play Facilities 0 54,584 54,584 54,584 54,584 0 0 G G

BA179 - Abington Park, Changing Room refurbishment 0 12,000 12,000 11,803 12,000 0 0 G G

BA180 - Strategic Property Investment 500,000 0 500,000 0 500,000 0 0 G G

BA181 - Refurbishment Abington Park Cottages 1&2 130,000 -54,665 75,335 74,691 75,335 0 0 G G

BA182 - Central Museum - Replacement of Air Conditioning Units 40,000 0 40,000 0 40,000 0 0 G G

BA183 - Timber Footbridge Replacements 135,000 -33,000 102,000 96,568 102,000 0 0 G G

BA184 - Improvements to Ridings Car Parks 57,000 -19,751 37,249 35,543 37,249 0 0 G G

BA185 - Improvements to Escalators - Greyfriars Bus Station 24,720 0 24,720 24,844 24,720 0 0 G G

BA186 - Improvement to Parks Infrastructure 102,000 -49,000 53,000 959 53,000 0 210,482 G R

BA187 - Racecourse Bowling Green Footpaths 12,000 0 12,000 10,814 12,000 0 0 G G

BA188 - Royal and Derngate Roof Replacement Works 65,000 8,834 73,834 79,855 73,834 0 0 G G

BA189 - Corporate Asset Improvements 191,780 -128,053 63,727 67,943 63,727 0 112,122 G R

BA191 - Replacement of Air Conditioning at Westbridge Depot 120,000 9,890 129,890 129,144 129,890 0 0 G G

GF 

BA191 - Replacement of Air Conditioning at Westbridge Depot 120,000 9,890 129,890 129,144 129,890 0 0 G G

BA194 - Guildhall Renewals 75,000 -44,000 31,000 0 31,000 0 44,000 G R

BA195 - Promoting Northampton's Heritage 35,000 -35,000 0 0 0 0 0 G G

GF 

$rwxvzhah.xls

GF Capital Period 11 Page 1 of 3
Prepared by Finance

11/05/12

P
age 55



CORPORATE FINANCIAL REPORTS (GENERAL FUND REVENUE) APPENDIX 2

FINANCIAL YEAR 2011/2012

PERIOD 11 (February 2012)

201101 201100-201111 201100-201111 201100-201111 201111 201111 201111

Project Code & Project Description

Approved 

Budget 

February 

2011

Approved 

Changes

In Year

Latest 

Approved 

Budgets

YTD Actual 

Expenditure 

Forecasted 

Year End 

Spend

Forecasted -

Underspend / 

+Overspend 

for Year End

Budget

Carried

Forward

Forecast 

Variance 

RAG

Carry 

forward 

RAG

A B C=A+B D E F=E-C G

£ £ £ £ £ £ £

GF 

BA196 - Grosvenor/Greyfriars - Stagecoach Relocation 5,500,000 -3,500,000 2,000,000 0 2,000,000 0 3,000,000 G R

BA197 - Delapre Abbey Restoration Minor Projects 100,000 0 100,000 0 100,000 0 0 G G

BA202 - Beckets Park Victorian Promenade Restoration 0 252,442 252,442 252,442 252,442 0 0 G G

BA368 - Upton Park Pedestrian & Cycle Bridge 0 595,955 595,955 359,380 595,955 0 282,545 G R

BA374 - Abington Museum Installation of Basement Level Radon Ventilation 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 G G

BA887 - Grosvenor Greyfriars Car Park Improvement Works 0 1,173,533 1,173,533 1,074,943 1,173,533 0 0 G G

BA888 - Market Square LED Lighting 0 51,793 51,793 15,333 51,793 0 0 G G

BA889 - Mayorhold Car Park -  Drainage Works 0 0 0 0 0 0 80,000 G G

Total for Head of Regeneration and Development 7,462,500 -1,585,637 5,876,863 2,618,597 5,876,863 0 5,272,763 G R

BA130 - Centralisation of POF Carparking 0 39,095 39,095 15,647 39,095 0 0 G GBA130 - Centralisation of POF Carparking 0 39,095 39,095 15,647 39,095 0 0 G G

BA902 - Grosvenor Car Park -  Parking Machines 0 33,650 33,650 29,170 33,650 0 0 G G

Total for Head of Town Centre Management 0 72,745 72,745 44,817 72,745 0 0 G G

BK010 - Countrywide Climate Friendly Commmunities 0 183,902 183,902 79,809 183,902 0 0 G G

BK011 - Places of Change 0 711,499 711,499 711,499 711,499 0 0 G G

BK014 - CBL Sub-regional scheme 0 41,201 41,201 14,208 41,201 0 0 G G

BK015 - DFG's Owner Occupiers 1,750,000 917,784 2,667,784 1,707,704 2,667,784 0 0 G G

BK029 - Hot Property 3 0 1,392 1,392 -2,482 1,392 0 0 G G

BK030 - Heatstreets 0 0 0 -56 0 0 0 G G

BK042 - Ecton Lane Improvements 0 0 0 5,059 0 0 0 G G

BK043 - Ecton Lane Remedial Works 2 0 0 0 -6,678 0 0 0 G G

BK044 - GOEM Decent Homes Assistance 0 424,319 424,319 288,069 424,319 0 0 G G

Total for Head of Strategic Housing 1,750,000 2,280,097 4,030,097 2,797,133 4,030,097 0 0 G G

BA144 - Playbuilder - Dallington 0 49,300 49,300 49,000 49,000 -300 0 G G

BA167 - I Love My Parks 0 220,000 220,000 200,095 220,000 0 30,000 G A

BA204 - EMS - Containers 0 208,000 208,000 208,105 208,105 105 0 G G

BA205 - EMS - Food Waste Caddies 0 408,568 408,568 408,568 408,568 0 0 G G

BA206 - EMS - Westbridge Depot Refurbishments 0 450,000 450,000 450,000 450,000 0 0 G G

BA460 - Wheelie Bins & Recycling Boxes - Town Growth 75,000 -58,606 16,394 -3,316 16,394 0 0 G G

Total for Director of Environment and Culture 75,000 1,277,262 1,352,262 1,312,452 1,352,067 -195 30,000 G G

BA166 - Development of Shoe Resource Centre 0 0 0 -1,135 0 0 0 G G

BA193 - Refurbishment - Northampton Museum and Art Gallery 210,000 95,976 305,976 169,079 305,976 0 0 G G

Total for Head of Leisure and Culture 210,000 95,976 305,976 167,943 305,976 0 0 G G

BA111 - Partnership Information Hub GIS 0 36,130 36,130 22,975 22,975 -13,155 0 G G

BA157 - COM; Telephony (VoIP) 0 54,706 54,706 25,245 54,706 0 0 G G

BA173 - Multi-Function Devices (MFD's) 0 118,169 118,169 88,541 118,169 0 0 G GBA173 - Multi-Function Devices (MFD's) 0 118,169 118,169 88,541 118,169 0 0 G G

BA192 - Content Management System Upgrade for Websites 30,000 0 30,000 18,350 30,000 0 0 G G

$rwxvzhah.xls

GF Capital Period 11 Page 2 of 3
Prepared by Finance

11/05/12

P
age 56



CORPORATE FINANCIAL REPORTS (GENERAL FUND REVENUE) APPENDIX 2

FINANCIAL YEAR 2011/2012

PERIOD 11 (February 2012)

201101 201100-201111 201100-201111 201100-201111 201111 201111 201111

Project Code & Project Description

Approved 

Budget 

February 

2011

Approved 

Changes

In Year

Latest 

Approved 

Budgets

YTD Actual 

Expenditure 

Forecasted 

Year End 

Spend

Forecasted -

Underspend / 

+Overspend 

for Year End

Budget

Carried

Forward

Forecast 

Variance 

RAG

Carry 

forward 

RAG

A B C=A+B D E F=E-C G

£ £ £ £ £ £ £

GF 

BA198 - Purchase of Terrapin Buildings 0 7,500 7,500 0 7,500 0 0 G G

BA207 - IT Infrastructure - Servers and Network Storage 0 142,300 142,300 82,895 142,300 0 0 G G

BA644 - One Stop Shop Transformation 0 172,636 172,636 179,781 179,031 6,395 0 G G

BA743 - Electronic Record Management 0 0 0 0 0 0 5,911 G G

BA764 - One Stop Shop, CRM 36,500 106,305 142,805 113,139 142,805 0 0 G G

BA786 - Data Network Improvements 0 41,692 41,692 0 41,692 0 74,600 G R

BA808 - IT Network Replacement Programme 0 70,814 70,814 9,278 70,814 0 0 G G

Total for Head of Customer Services and ICT 66,500 750,252 816,752 540,203 809,992 -6,760 80,511 G A

BA160 - COM; Expansion 4 Home Working 0 27,676 27,676 27,954 28,232 556 0 G G

BA164 - COM; IT Equipment New ways of working 0 90,159 90,159 90,456 90,159 0 65,900 G RBA164 - COM; IT Equipment New ways of working 0 90,159 90,159 90,456 90,159 0 65,900 G R

BA165 - COM; Document Management 0 100,000 100,000 1,929 100,000 0 0 G G

Total for Head of Revenues and Benefits 0 217,835 217,835 120,339 218,391 556 65,900 G R

BA210 - Jeffrey Room Audio and Visual Improvements 0 60,500 60,500 1,006 60,500 0 0 G G

BA883 - Planning IT Improvements (HPDG) 0 15,955 15,955 10,618 15,955 0 190,446 G R

Total for Head of Planning 0 76,455 76,455 11,623 76,455 0 190,446 G R

BA109 - Camp Hill Multi Use Game Area (MUGA) 0 0 0 -1,122 0 0 0 G G

BA176 - CM-Draught Proofing Guildhall 0 8,260 8,260 4,869 7,553 -707 0 G G

BA208 - Eastfield Park Improved Park Entrance 0 35,000 35,000 34,693 35,000 0 0 G G

BA211 - Extension of Duston Cemetery 0 45,000 45,000 0 45,000 0 0 G G

BA872 - Night Safe & Target Hardening - SSNP 0 8,021 8,021 17,350 8,021 0 13,825 G R

Total for Head of Public Protection 0 96,281 96,281 55,790 95,574 -707 13,825 G A

BA878 - Money 4 Youth: Youth Capital Fund 0 46,712 46,712 24,006 46,712 0 0 G G

Total for Head of Policy and Community Engagement 0 46,712 46,712 24,006 46,712 0 0 G G

TOTALS 9,564,000 4,211,860 13,775,860 8,518,002 13,768,754 -7,106 5,692,618 G R

$rwxvzhah.xls

GF Capital Period 11 Page 3 of 3
Prepared by Finance

11/05/12

P
age 57



P
age 58

T
his page is intentionally left blank



UPDATED FOR MANAGEMENT POST PERIOD CLOSE APPENDIX 3

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

FINANCIAL YEAR 2011/2012

PRODUCED 13/03/12

For Period Ending 29th February 2012

2011/2012 2011/2012 2011/2012 Variance RAG

£,000's £,000's £,000's Status

Current Budget Actuals Forecast Outturn

INCOME

Rents - Dwellings Only -44,753 -32,626 -44,771 -18

Rents - Non Dwellings Only -1,134 -904 -1,112 22

Service Charges -1,450 -629 -1,453 -4

Other Income -25 21 -25 0

Total Income -47,361 -34,138 -47,361 1 G

EXPENDITURE

Repairs and Maintenance 10,251 9,113 10,487 237

General Management 5,195 4,430 5,364 169

Special Services 2,843 2,197 2,664 -180

Rents, Rates, Taxes & Other Charges 87 -6 87 0

Increase in Bad Debt Provision 450 367 400 -50

Rent Rebate Subsidy Deductions 811 743 811 0

Housing Revenue Account Subsidy 12,737 11,043 12,047 -690

Total Expenditure 32,374 27,886 31,860 -514 B

Net Cost of Services -14,987 -6,251 -15,500 -513 B

Net Recharges 4,856 4,250 4,636 -220Net Recharges 4,856 4,250 4,636 -220

Interest & Financing Costs 262 153 167 -95

Depreciation/MRA 8,161 7,481 8,161 0

Contribution to Earmarked Reserves 1,708 2,227 2,429 721

Net Transfer From / (To) Working Balance 0 7,859 -107 -107 B

Working Balance b/f -4,893 -4,893 -4,893 0

Working Balance Outturn -4,893 2,966 -5,000 -107 B

Notes on Forecast Variances

Repairs and Maintenance

Largely reflects increased employee costs that relate to posts to support the Capital programme and are offset by 

reduced recharges below. Also, less corporate work carried out, resulting in lower income form the General Fund.

General Management

Various - including additional costs in relation to IT system upgrades, trainee schemes and employee costs.

Special Services

Lower costs incurred on utilities and maintenance of communal areas. Also reflects lower staff costs than budgetted.  

Increase in Bad Debt Provision

Lower arrears levels than anticipated. Hence, a reduced requirement to provide for bad debts.

HRA Subsidy

Adjustments to Capital Allowances have reduced the payment required to Central Government. The amount payable is

determined by a formula set out by the the Dept for Communities and Local Government.

Net Recharges

Some employee costs have been attributed to Capital Schemes. This is reflected in the lower level of net recharges.

In addition, projected savings within the Central Support Services will result in lower costs attributable to the HRA.

Interest & Financing Costs

HRA cash balances being higher than budgeted and investment rates achieved out performing the budgeted rate.

Page 59



Page 60

This page is intentionally left blank



CORPORATE FINANCIAL REPORTS (CAPITAL) : (Cost Centre & Head of Service) APPENDIX 4

FINANCIAL YEAR 2011/2012

PERIOD 11 (February 2012)

201101 201100-201111 201100-201111 201100-201111 201111 201111 201111

Project Code & Project Description

Approved 

Budget 

February 2011

Approved 

Changes

In Year

Latest 

Approved 

Budgets

YTD Actual 

Expenditure 

Forecasted Year 

End Spend

Forecasted -

Underspend / 

+Overspend for 

Year End

Budget

Carried

Forward

Forecast 

Variance 

RAG

Carry 

forward 

RAG

A B C=A+B D E F=E-C G

£ £ £ £ £ £ £

Christine Ansell (CA3)

BH003 - Garages Roofs & Doors Replacement 40,000 -20,000 20,000 14,799 20,000 0 20,000 G R

BH009 - Fire Safety Works - communal areas 200,000 123,958 323,958 317,845 323,958 0 0 G G

BH011 - Capital Improvement Works 0 100,000 100,000 100,482 100,000 0 0 G G

BH013 - Digital Aerial Upgrade 10,000 13,010 23,010 28,024 23,010 0 0 G G

BH014 - Estate Regeneration 160,000 -49,694 110,306 17,254 110,306 0 105,000 G R

BH019 - Window Restrictors 0 4,892 4,892 4,891 4,892 0 26,283 G R

BH020 - Periodical Electrical Works 125,000 85,000 210,000 80,918 210,000 0 28,586 G A

BH021 - New Communal Boilers 150,000 110,000 260,000 151,392 260,000 0 0 G G

BH022 - Community Energy Savings Programme (CESP) 0 950 950 950 950 0 726,828 G R

BH023 - External Gas Supply Replacement 0 100,000 100,000 60,435 100,000 0 0 G G

BH140 - Disabled Grant - Major Repairs 1,000,000 705,611 1,705,611 1,551,245 1,705,611 0 0 G G

BH302 - Disabled Alterations Capital Schemes 140,000 27,986 167,986 71,593 167,986 0 0 G G

BH304 - Complete Roofs 500,000 218,691 718,691 356,823 718,691 0 115,000 G R

BH305 - Structural Surveys & Repairs (Red CRiteria) 200,000 18,975 218,975 212,818 218,975 0 0 G G

BH317 - Decent Homes and Poor Condition Improvement 14,123,000 -1,739,643 12,383,357 10,106,493 12,383,357 0 0 G G

HRA CAPITAL

BH317 - Decent Homes and Poor Condition Improvement 14,123,000 -1,739,643 12,383,357 10,106,493 12,383,357 0 0 G G

BH321 - Door & Window Replacement 20,000 6,732 26,732 24,698 26,732 0 0 G G

BH324 - Gas Appliance Replacement - Planned Ptnrship 500,000 1,600,400 2,100,400 2,013,661 2,100,400 0 0 G G

BH325 - Gas Appliance Replacement - Responsive 500,000 9,456 509,456 582,444 509,456 0 0 G G

BH329 - Health & Safety Capital Schemes 100,000 3,418 103,418 105,737 103,418 0 0 G G

BH336 - Cooper Street Housing 0 0 0 -245 0 0 0 G G

BH338 - Capital Voids 1,000,000 0 1,000,000 676,943 1,000,000 0 0 G G

BH345 - Kitchen replacement 500,000 79,886 579,886 579,886 579,886 0 40,708 G A

BH351 - Door Entry Updates 100,000 203,285 303,285 174,226 303,285 0 0 G G

BH354 - Lift Refurbishment 180,000 87,216 267,216 248,836 267,216 0 0 G G

BH364 - Environmental enhancements to housing land 200,000 55,228 255,228 124,201 255,228 0 61,000 G R

Total for Head of Landlord Services 19,748,000 1,745,357 21,493,357 17,606,348 21,493,357 0 1,123,405 G A

Fran Rodgers (FR2)

BA742 - Housing Systems Replacement (FISH) 0 88,850 88,850 83,195 88,850 0 0 G G

BH006 - Woodside Way New Build 0 0 0 -15,996 0 0 0 G G

Total for Head of Strategic Housing 0 88,850 88,850 67,199 88,850 0 0 G G

TOTALS 19,748,000 1,834,207 21,582,207 17,673,547 21,582,207 0 1,123,405 G A

HRA CAPITAL

$0l0w4t3y.xls

CFR0 GF Page 1 of 1
Prepared by Finance

11/05/12

P
age 61



P
age 62

T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 5

150000

175000

200000

225000

250000

275000

300000

325000

350000

375000

400000

425000

450000

£

Total Daily Ticket Income 2010/11, 2011/12 and  2012/13

Car Parking Income 2010/11

Car Parking Income 2011/12

Car Parking Income 2012/13

Profiled Budget Income 2012/13

Total Summary Ticket Numbers 2010/11, 2011/12 and 2012/13 

The final income figure for daily tickets in 2011/12 is £2,906,909 against a budget of £3,225,978 providing a shortfall of £319,069. 

The income received is £24k higher than the estimate of £2,883,000 provided in February. 

2011/12 income is £395k less than 2010/11. 

The volume of ticket numbers in 2011/12 is 2,004,762 which is 104k higher than 2010/11. 

The budget for 12/13 for Car Parking Daily Ticket Income is £2,670,978.

150000

175000

200000

225000

250000

275000

300000

325000

350000

375000

400000

425000

450000

£

Total Daily Ticket Income 2010/11, 2011/12 and  2012/13

Car Parking Income 2010/11

Car Parking Income 2011/12

Car Parking Income 2012/13

Profiled Budget Income 2012/13

0

50000

100000

150000

200000

250000

A
x
is

 T
it

le

Total Summary Ticket Numbers 2010/11, 2011/12 and 2012/13 

Total Ticket Numbers 2010/11

Total Ticket Numbers 2011/12

Total Ticket Numbers 2012/13

Page 63



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 6 

Audit Committee Age debt analysis  1 of 2 

Managed Debt Analysis 2011/12                  
 APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR 

TOTAL 
ARREARS 19,131,164 18,858,181 17,853,179 18,300,059 17,543,736 16,546,113 15,932,430 15,980,705 15,045,254 14,377,143 12,775,573 13,716,504 

Awaiting 
Action 1,471,740 1,344,078 1,130,890 1,194,846 1,095,421 1,003,148 1,021,854 559,935 691,782 689,849 385,556 607,440 

Debt in 
Progress 17,659,424 17,514,103 16,722,289 17,105,213 16,448,315 15,542,965 14,910.576 15,421,860 14,353,472 13,687,294 12,390,013 13,109,064 

% Inactive 
debt [PI] 7.69% 7.13% 6.33% 6.53% 6.24% 6.06% 6.41% 3.50% 4.60% 4.80% 3.02% 4.43% 

CTAX 9,861,308 9,312,254 8,965,583 8,798,626 8,317,736 7,900,988 7,674,697 7,507,756 7,276,413 6,803,605 6,510,454 6,219,947 

Inactive   388,267 302,148 357,223 330,884 338,801 384,974 444,410 148,845 144,914 92,342 71,719 57,718 

In 
progress 9,473,041 9,010,106 8,608,360 8,467,742 7,978,935 7,516,014 7,230,287 7,358,911 7,131,499 6,711,263 6,438,734 6,162,229 

Inactive 
debt 3.94% 3.24% 3.98% 3.76% 4.07% 4.87% 5.79% 1.98% 1.99% 1.36% 1.10% 0.93% 

NNDR 2,523,997 2,419,223 1,949,323 2,031,969 1,624,011 1,483,784 1,274,408 1,225,782 1,149,308 919,808 912,303 986,230 

Inactive   0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

In 
progress 2,523,997 2,419,223 1,949,323 2,031,969 1,624,011 1,483,78 1,274,408 1,225,782 1,149,308 919,808 912,303 986,230 

Inactive 
debt 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 

FTA 1,414,084 1,390,874 1,422,396 1,400,314 1,417,501 1,347,224 1,357,274 1,396,226 1,316,119 1,299,013 Not Avail 1,266,731 

Inactive   121,473 112,976 157,715 191,959 154,045 145,330 138,673 127,052 102,122 214,399 Not Avail 173,231 

In 
progress 1,292,611 1,277,898 1,264,681 1,208,355 1,263,456 1,201,894 1,218,601 1,269,173 1,213,996 1,084,613 Not Avail 1,093,501 

Inactive 
debt 8.59% 8.12% 11.09% 13.71% 10.87% 10.79% 10.22% 9.10% 7.76% 16.50% Not Avail 13.68% 

HBOP 4,078,858 4,132,484 4,281,919 4,245,479 4,283,298 4,323,498 4,275,001 4,282,775 4,217,375 4,268,678 4,266,777 4,157,557 

Inactive   365,030 300,500 351,403 363,711 319,252 361,588 192,674 184,294 371,672 310,033 240,767 303,417 

In 
progress 3,713,828 3,831,984 3,930,515 3,881,768 3,964,046 3,961,910 4,082,328 4,098,481 3,845,703 3,958,645 4,026,010 3,854,140 

Inactive 
debt 8.95% 7.27% 8.21% 8.57% 7.45% 8.36% 4.51% 4.30% 8.81% 7.26% 5.64% 7.30% 

SD 1,252,917 1,603,346 1,233,958 1,823,673 1,901,189 1,490,617 1,351,049 1,569,256 1,086,039 1,086,039 1,086,039 1,086,039 

Inactive   596,969 628,454 264,548 308,293 283,323 111,255 246,097 99,744 73,074 73,074 73,074 73,074 

In 
progress 655,948 974,892 969,410 1,515,380 1,617,866 1,379,362 1,104,952 1,469,512 1,012,965 1,012,965 1,012,965 1,012,965 

Inactive 
debt 47.65% 39.20% 21.44% 16.91% 14.90% 7.46% 18.22% 6.36% 6.73% 6.73% 6.73% 6.73% 

P
age 65



APPENDIX 6 

Audit Committee Age debt analysis  2 of 2 

 
 
 
� Overall debt levels as at 31st March 2012 

Unmanaged debt is £554.4k (3.52%) less than at the end of March 2011. The overall outstanding arrears are £899.9k less than at 
the same point last year. 

 
� Council Tax as at 31st March 2012 

Unmanaged debt is £285.4 less than the same time last year. The overall outstanding arrears are £586.6k less than at the same 
point last year. 

 
� Business Rates as at 31st March 2012 

Unmanaged debt remains unchanged. The overall outstanding arrears are £277.5k less than at the same point last year. 
 
� Former Tenant Arrears as at 31st March 2012 

Unmanaged debt is £69.8k more than the same time last year, primarily this is due to the increase in cases requiring court action, 
over one month old. The overall outstanding arrears are £129.3k less than at the same point last year. 

 
� Housing Benefit Overpayments Payments as at 31st March 2012 

Unmanaged debt is £33.4k more than the same time last year, primarily this is due to the increase in cases requiring court action, 
over one month old. The overall outstanding arrears are £83.9k more than at the same point last year. Whilst income collection is 
above target, these cases remain very difficult to collect and the increase in our rent allowance caseload of 50% has impacted on 
the debt levels in this area. Benchmarking with similar sized Councils reflects the trend at Northampton. 

 
� Sundry Debts as at 31st March 2012 

Unmanaged debt is £372.1k less than the same time last year. The overall outstanding arrears are £0.3k less than at the same 
point last year. 
 

� Priority Debts March 2012 
As a result of priority debt as defined by the Corporate Debt Policy we now have £342.4k on hold awaiting clearance of priority 
debts. This is broadly broken down as FTA £148.4, IRAS £81k and OPHB £113.0. As more cases reach consideration for court 
action this category of debt pending other priority debt will increase. 
 

 

P
age 66



 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

AGENDA STATUS: PUBLIC 
 

 
Audit Committee Meeting Date: 
 
Policy Document: 
 
 

Directorate: 
 
 

Accountable Cabinet Member:  
 

  
21st May 2012 
 
No 
 
Resources 
 
Cllr Alan Bottwood 
 

 
 

1. Purpose 

1.1 To provide the Audit Committee with a report summarising progress made 
against the approved internal audit plan for 2011/12 and the draft annual 
internal audit report. 

 

2. Recommendations 

 
2.1 To receive the report. 

 

3. Issues and Choices 

 
3.1 Report Background 

3.1.1 The report is produced to inform the Committee on internal audit activity in the 
current year up to the date of the Committee meeting and to provide the draft 
annual internal report for the year.  

3.2 Issues 

3.2.1 As detailed in the report. 

 

3.3 Choices (Options) 

3.3.1 None 

. 

Report Title 
Internal Audit Progress Report and draft annual report 
for 2012/13 

Appendices: 2 

Agenda Item 8

Page 67



4. Implications (including financial implications) 

 
4.1 Policy 

4.1.1 No implications other than enabling monitoring of internal audit reporting 
performance. 

4.2 Resources and Risk 

4.2.1 Risks may be highlighted as a result of audit issues being reported 

 
4.3 Legal 

4.3.1 N/a 

 

4.4 Equality 

4.4.1 N/a 

 

4.5 Consultees (Internal and External) 

4.5.1 Director of Resources and Head of Finance and Resources 

 

4.6 Other Implications 

4.6.1 N/a 

 

5. Background Papers 
 

5.1 Appendices to the report 
 

• Appendix 1 – Internal Audit Progress Report 

• Appendix 2 – Draft Annual Internal Audit Report. 
 
 
 

Chris Dickens 
Senior Manager 
PricewtarehouseCoppers LLP 
01509 604041 

Page 68



www.pwc.co.uk

Internal Audit

Annual Report
2011/2012

Northampton Borough
Council

May 2012

Appendix 2

Page 69



Annual Report 2011/2012 Draft

Internal audit report for

Northampton Borough Council PwC Contents

Contents

1. Executive summary 1

2. Summary of findings 3

3. Internal Audit work conducted 7

Appendices 12

Appendix 1: Limitations and responsibilities 13
Appendix 2: Basis of our classifications 14

Distribution List

Corporate Management Team

Audit Committee

This document has been prepared only for Northampton Borough Council and solely
for the purpose and on the terms agreed with Northampton Borough Council.

Appendix 2

Page 70



Internal Audit Annual Report 2011/12 for Northampton Borough Council Draft

Annual Internal audit report for

Northampton Borough Council PwC 1

Background
The CIPFA Audit Code of Practice requires that the Head of Internal Audit provides a written report to the
Audit Committee, timed to inform the organisation’s Annual Governance Statement. This report presents our
view on the adequacy and effectiveness of Northampton Borough Council’s system of governance, risk
management and control.

Whilst this report is a key element of the framework designed to inform the Annual Governance Statement,
there are also a number of other important sources to which the Audit Committee and statutory officers should
look to gain assurance. This report does not supplant the Audit Committee’s responsibility for forming their
own view on governance, risk management and control.

This report covers the period to the year ended 31stMarch 2012.

Scope
Our findings are based on the results of the internal audit work performed as set out in the 2011/12 Internal
Audit Plan and subsequent amendments approved by the Audit Committee. All changes have been outlined in
our update reports taken to Audit Committee during the year.

Our opinion is subject to the inherent limitations of internal audit (covering both the control environment and
the assurance over controls) as set out in Appendix 1.

Our internal audit was performed in accordance with CIPFA’s Audit Code of Practice. CIPFA’s Audit Code of
Practice is not designed or intended to conform to the International Standards on Assurance Engagements
issued by the International Auditing and Assurance Standards Board. As a consequence our work was not
designed to comply with the International Standards on Assurance Engagements. Our work was designed to
comply with CIPFA’s Audit Code of Practice which must be followed for local government.

Opinion
Our opinion is based solely on our assessment of whether the controls in place support the achievement of
management's objectives as set out in our 2011/12 Internal Audit Plan.

1. Executive summary

Appendix 2

Page 71



Internal Audit Annual Report 2011/12 for Northampton Borough Council Draft

Annual Internal audit report for

Northampton Borough Council PwC 2

We have completed the program of internal audit work for the year ended 31 March. Our work identified 4 high,
30 medium and 38 low rated findings.

During the course of our work, we have also become aware of other issues that we believe could have, or have
had an impact upon Northampton Borough Council’s system of internal control. Based on the work we have
completed, we believe that there is some risk that management's objectives may not be fully achieved.
Improvements are required in those areas to enhance the adequacy and / or effectiveness of governance, risk
management and internal control.

These areas relate to contract governance arrangements specifically for the following contracts:

Leisure Trust

Decent Homes

Environmental Services

For these reviews we identified that more work is required to ensure that contracts are robustly set up, managed
and monitored

Other key factors that contributed to our opinion are summarised as follows:

Procurement review identified 2 high risk recommendations, although our follow up review indicated that only
1 high risk point remained outstanding and work had been completed to help mitigate this risk.

Voids review identified 1 high risk recommendations

Performance indicators review identified 1 risk recommendation.

Please refer to Section 2, Summary of Findings for details.

We are pleased to note that the majority of functions audited in 2012/13 were low risk and that no functions
audited in the previous year had worse control than in 2011/12. Four of the five core financial systems were
rated as low risk. The direction of control graphic on page 11 clearly demonstrates the overall improvements in
control at the Council.

A summary of the key findings are described in further detail on page 4 to 7

Acknowledgement
We would like to take this opportunity to thank all Directors, Heads of Service and members of the Audit
Committee for their co-operation and assistance provided during the year.

Appendix 2

Page 72



Internal Audit Annual Report 2011/12 for Northampton Borough Council Draft

PwC 3

Our annual internal audit report is timed to inform the organisation’s Annual Governance Statement.

A summary of key findings from our programme of internal audit work for the year work is recorded in the table
below:

Description Detail

Overview

We completed 31 internal audit reviews
(including value enhancement reviews). This
resulted in the identification of 0 critical, 4
high, 30 medium and 38 low risk findings to
improve weaknesses in the design of controls
or operating effectiveness.

Our audit plan was scoped to address the Council’s key
risks and strategic objectives. We mapped each review to
these areas in our 2011/12 Internal Audit plan

We have completed our internal audit plan in line with
the set timescales. We have delivered training on fraud
awareness in year.

Our plan included 10 “value enhancement” reviews:

o HRA Business Plan Assumptions

o Environmental Services Contract Review

o Leisure Trust Contract Review

o Decent Homes Contract Review Governance
survey

o Anti-fraud awareness training

o Audit Committee effectiveness training

o Anti-fraud health check

o IT benchmarking review

o Progression related pay

Internal Control Issues

During the course of our work we identified 4
high risk issues which have been outlined in
the next cell. Given the materiality of these
systems (Procurement, Voids and
Performance Indicators) to the Council, you
should consider inclusion of these areas in
your Annual Governance Statement.

The following high risk areas have been raised in 2011/12:

Procurement

The procurement review (11_12 NBC Procurement 01)
was conducted following a management request for internal
audit assistance. The procurement function became the
responsibility of the finance function from the 1st April 2011
following a restructure. The procurement audit was designed
to assess the design and operation of controls within
procurement and provide recommendations to help
management improve these controls where necessary.

We identified two high risk findings:

Signed copies of contracts selected for testing could not be
located by the services responsible for managing the
contracts.

Sample testing of procurement transactions pointed to a
number of issues with cases tested; for example members of
staff ordering goods often did not obtain the minimum
required number of quotations, or comply fully with tender

2. Summary of findings

Appendix 2

Page 73



Internal Audit Annual Report 2011/12 for Northampton Borough Council Draft

PwC 4

Description Detail

processes prior to purchasing goods or services. This leads to
increased risks of poor value for money and inappropriate or
unauthorised transactions.

A follow up of the Procurement recommendations raised was
conducted at the request of Management in March 2012. In
total we identified 17 actions related to the 3 findings in the
original report of which 11 were implemented, 5 were
outstanding and 1 was no longer relevant. Of the 5
recommendation outstanding, 1 was high risk, 2 medium risk
and 2 low risk.

The open high risk issue relates to the compliance with the
tender processes and training the relevant staff. A training
package has now been produced by developing a lesson
already developed by Milton Keynes Council.

This is yet to be rolled out in the Authority and therefore staff
have not yet completed the training or signed the declaration
that they understand the procurement requirements and will
adhere to them.

However this risk has been mitigated to some extent through
the delivery of high level procurement training at the
Managers meeting, targeting everyone from team leader and
above.

The procurement team also routinely attend senior
management team meetings to pick up any control issues and
to reinforce the process

Voids

The void properties review (11_12 NBC Voids 02) focussed
on controls in place over the management of void council
houses. The review focussed on void operational
management, void management information and cost control.
We identified one high finding, that management information
on voids is undermined because data on the Integrated
Business Solutions (IBS) housing system is wrong in a
number of cases and unlettable periods have been calculated
incorrectly. This makes the Council's performance look better
than it actually is. The root cause is that IBS is not updated
fully when properties become lettable following unlettable
periods, such as when major works have occurred.

Performance Indicators

The Council sets housing performance indicators to assess
their performance against a number of qualitative and
quantitative targets. This review looked to understand and
comment on the quality of data collated by the Council for
measurement of performance.

The following work was been performed for each indicator:

Review of procedure notes and definition records;

Assessment of the method of collection against key data
quality assertions (completeness, accuracy, source,
validity, collection method and timing);

Appendix 2

Page 74



Internal Audit Annual Report 2011/12 for Northampton Borough Council Draft

PwC 5

Description Detail

For HMCORE and HMOTH indicators, the compilation
method was reviewed against relevant HouseMark
guidance to ensure compliance; and

Validation of a sample of data. A sample of 10
transactions was be selected from 2011/12 Q1 and
Q2submissions. Validation was only be performed on
those indicators where no issues have been noted with the
compilation method

The performance indicators report (11_12 NBC
Performance Indicators 12) identified one high risk
finding:

For indicator HI 16 Average number of days taken to resolve
ASB cases, The start and end dates days for cases used to
calculate this indicator should be supported by evidence to
verify the case has been opened/closed (e.g. telephone notes
or letters issued). In 4/10 cases tested, the dates used to
calculate the days did not agree to supporting documentation.
It has been established this is because officers are not always
certain of the correct trigger for the start date (i.e. the initial
contact or when the case was brought to the attention of the
Council) In a further 5 cases, there was no evidence retained
to support the dates. This is because no paper file was opened
when the initial complaint was received.

Other weaknesses

Other weaknesses were identified within the
organisation’s governance, risk management
and internal control, which relate to
consistency of control design and follow up of
prior year recommendations.

Our reviews identified the following common areas of
weakness that should be considered by management:

Our review of a number of the Council’s contracts
identified that more work is required to ensure that
contracts are robustly set up, managed and monitored. We
identified concerns around the governance arrangements
for the following contracts:

Leisure Trust

Decent Homes

Environmental Services

A number of recommendations were identified within
these three reviews. The Council should learn lessons from
these contracts in order to ensure that in future significant
contracts are set up and managed appropriately.

Good practice

We also identified a number of areas where
few weaknesses were identified and / or areas
of good practice.

The following reviews were classified as low risk for 2011/12:

Risk Management and Business Continuity

Treasury Management

Budgetary Control

General Ledger (part of core financial
systems review)

Debtors(part of core financial systems
review)

Creditors (Agresso) (part of core financial

Appendix 2

Page 75



Internal Audit Annual Report 2011/12 for Northampton Borough Council Draft

PwC 6

Description Detail

systems review)

Fixed Assets

Cash and Banking(part of core financial
systems review)

Expenses

Housing Benefits

Housing Rents

Debt Recovery

Human Resources – Induction Training

Planning applications

Regeneration and Development –
Development governance

Appendix 2

Page 76



Internal Audit Annual Report 2011/12 for Northampton Borough Council Draft

PwC 7

Introduction
Our internal audit work was conducted in accordance with our letter of engagement, CIPFA’s Audit Code of
Practice and the 2011/12 Internal Audit Plan.

The table below sets out the results of our internal audit work and implications for next year’s plan. The
direction of travel is also analysed so management can consider whether they should take action to reverse a
trend or address stagnation.

We also include a comparison between planned internal audit activity and actual activity, to assist with
budgeting and forward planning.

3. Internal Audit work conducted

Appendix 2

Page 77



Internal Audit Annual Report 2011/12 for Northampton Borough Council Draft

PwC 8

Results of individual assignments

Audit unit
Report
status

Direction of
Travel

Report
classification

Number of findings

Critical High Medium Low

Cross Cutting

Risk Management
and Business
Continuity

Final Low Risk 0 0 2 0

Procurement

*Please see note
below table

Final No review
performed in
prior year

High Risk 0 2 1 0

Treasury
Management

Final No review
performedin
prior year

Low Risk 0 0 0 2

Budgetary Control Draft Low Risk 0 0 2 0

General
Ledger(part of
core financial
systems review)

Final Low Risk 0 0 0 0

Debtors
Ledger(part of core
financial systems
review)

Final Low Risk 0 0 0 3

Creditors (Agresso)
Ledger(part of core
financial systems
review)

Final Low Risk 0 0 1 0

Payroll Ledger(part
of core financial
systems review)

Final Medium
Risk

0 0 3 2

Cash and Banking
Ledger(part of core
financial systems
review)

Final Low Risk 0 0 1 1

Creditors (IBS) Final Medium Risk 0 0 3 2

Fixed Assets Draft Low Risk 0 0 1 2

Expenses Final Low Risk 0 0 1 2

Housing Benefits Draft Low Risk 0 0 0 1

Housing rents Final Low Risk 0 0 0 0

Appendix 2

Page 78



Internal Audit Annual Report 2011/12 for Northampton Borough Council Draft

PwC 9

Audit unit
Report
status

Report
classification

Number of findings

Debt Recovery Final Low Risk 0 0 0 3

Partnership
Arrangements

Draft Medium Risk 0 0 3 5

Departmental

Human Resources
– Induction
Training

Draft No review
performed in
prior year

Low Risk 0 0 0 3

Human Resources
- Recruitment

Final No review
performed in
prior year

Medium Risk 0 0 2

Strategic Housing -
Voids

Final No review
performed in
prior year

High Risk 0 1 2 4

Planning
applications

Draft Low Risk 0 0 0 5

Regeneration and
Development –
Development
governance

Final No review
performed in
prior year

Low Risk 0 0 0 0

Housing
Performance
Indicators

Final No review
performed in
prior year

N/A no
overall rating
provided

0 1 8 3

Total 0 4 30 38

*Procurement

A follow up of the Procurement recommendations raised was conducted at the request of Management. In total
there were 17 actions of which 11 were implemented, 5 were outstanding and 1 was no longer relevant. Of the 5
recommendation outstanding, 1 was high risk, 2 medium risk and 2 low risk.

In addition we have carried out the following reviews where no risk rating has been provided.

HRA Business Plan Assumptions

Environmental Services Contract Review

Leisure Trust Contract Review

Decent Homes Contract Review

Anti-fraud health check

Car park review

IT benchmarking review

Progression related pay

Appendix 2

Page 79



Internal Audit Annual Report 2011/12 for Northampton Borough Council Draft

PwC 10

Direction of control travel

Finding rating
Trend between current and
prior year

Number of findings

2011/12 2010/11

Critical 0 0

High 4 5

Medium 30 62

Low
4. 38

63

Total 72 130

It should be noted that the mix and focus of our internal audit plans have differed between years and therefore
these results may not be directly comparable.

Adjustments to the original agreed audit plan:

The following adjustments were made to the audit plan agreed at the Audit Committee in March 2012. These have been
reported to the Audit Committee during the year.

Review Additional Days Reduced days Comments

Removed from the plan

Asset

Management

-8 Removed from plan - timing for the review is

not appropriate at the moment (due to

significant changes which have occurred in the

Department)

Included in 2012/13 audit plan

Community

Assets

-5 Community asset programme delayed hence

audit input required later

Included in 2012/13 audit plan

Appendix 2

Page 80



Internal Audit Annual Report 2011/12 for Northampton Borough Council Draft

PwC 11

Planning -

change of

scope

-8 Locally set planning fees has been removed as

there has yet to be a government decision on

this

WNDC Development governance removed as

CLG are performing a review of this.

Instead of the two reviews set out in the plan, a

review of the control design and operation of the

new planning process (set up for applications

previously dealt with by WNDC) will be

performed in February (plan updated for this)

This had a net effect of reducing the planned

days by 8.

Added to the plan

Debt

recovery

2010/11

1 Number of extra meetings and report versions

required to finalise this report

Grosvenor

Car Parking

3 Specific review of cash collection requested by

the Director of Finance and Head of Finance

Performance

Indicators

15 Additional audit work requested by Housing

department to help validate performance

indicators

Total 19 -21

Grand

Total

-2 Net effect of reducing the original agreed

planned days by 2.

Appendix 2

Page 81



Internal Audit Annual Report 2011/12 for Northampton Borough Council Draft

PwC 12

Appendices

Appendix 2

Page 82



Internal Audit Annual Report 2011/12 for Northampton Borough Council Draft

PwC 13

Limitations inherent to the internal auditor’s work
We have prepared the Internal Audit Annual Report and undertaken the agreed programme of work as agreed
with management and Audit Committee subject to the limitations outlined below.

Opinion
The opinion is based solely on the work undertaken as part of the agreed 2011/12 Internal Audit Plan, which
provided for 299 days. The work addressed the control objectives agreed for each individual internal audit
assignments as set out in our individual assignment reports.

There might be weaknesses in the system of internal control that we are not aware of because they did not form
part of our programme of work, were excluded from the scope of individual internal audit assignments or were
not brought to our attention. As a consequence management and the Audit Committee should be aware that our
opinion may have differed if our programme of work or scope for individual reviews was extended or other
relevant matters were brought to our attention.

Internal control:
Internal control systems, no matter how well designed and operated, are affected by inherent limitations. These
include the possibility of poor judgment in decision-making, human error, control processes being deliberately
circumvented by employees and others, management overriding controls and the occurrence of unforeseeable
circumstances.

Future periods:
Our assessment of controls relating to Northampton Borough Council is for the year ended 31st March 2012.
Historic evaluation of effectiveness may not be relevant to future periods due to the risk that:

the design of controls may become inadequate because of changes in operating environment, law,
regulation or other; or

the degree of compliance with policies and procedures may deteriorate.

The specific time period for each individual internal audit is recorded within section3 of this report.

Responsibilities of management and internal auditors
It is management’s responsibility to develop and maintain sound systems of risk management, internal control
and governance and for the prevention and detection of irregularities and fraud. Internal audit work should not
be seen as a substitute for management’s responsibilities for the design and operation of these systems.

We endeavour to plan our work so that we have a reasonable expectation of detecting significant control
weaknesses and, if detected, we shall carry out additional work directed towards identification of consequent
fraud or other irregularities. However, internal audit procedures alone, even when carried out with due
professional care, do not guarantee that fraud will be detected, and our examinations as internal auditors
should not be relied upon to disclose all fraud, defalcations or other irregularities which may exist.

Appendix 1: Limitations and
responsibilities

Appendix 2

Page 83



Internal Audit Annual Report 2011/12 for Northampton Borough Council Draft

PwC 14

Report classifications
The report classification is determined by allocating points to each of the findings included in the report

Findings rating Points

Critical 40 points per finding

High 10 points per finding

Medium 3 points per finding

Low 1 point per finding

Report classification Points

Critical risk 40 points and over

High risk 16– 39 points

Medium risk 7– 15 points

Low risk 6 points or less

Appendix 2: Basis of our
classifications

Appendix 2

Page 84



Internal Audit Annual Report 2011/12 for Northampton Borough Council Draft

PwC 15

Individual finding ratings

Finding rating Assessment rationale

Critical A finding that could have a:

Critical impact on operational performance (quantify if possible); or

Critical monetary or financial statement impact (quantify if possible =
materiality); or

Critical breach in laws and regulations that could result in material fines or
consequences (quantify if possible); or

Critical impact on the reputation or brand of the organisation which could
threaten its future viability (quantify if possible).

High A finding that could have a:

Significant impact on operational performance (quantify if possible); or

Significantmonetary or financial statement impact (quantify if possible); or

Significant breach in laws and regulations resulting in significant fines and
consequences (quantify if possible); or

Significant impact on the reputation or brand of the organisation (quantify if
possible).

Medium A finding that could have a:

Moderate impact on operational performance (quantify if possible); or

Moderatemonetary or financial statement impact (quantify if possible); or

Moderate breach in laws and regulations resulting in fines and consequences
(quantify if possible); or

Moderate impact on the reputation or brand of the organisation (quantify if
possible).

Low A finding that could have a:

Minor impact on the organisation’s operational performance (quantify if possible);
or

Minormonetary or financial statement impact (quantify if possible ); or

Minor breach in laws and regulations with limited consequences (quantify if
possible); or

Minor impact on the reputation of the organisation (quantify if possible).

Advisory A finding that does not have a risk impact but has been raised to highlight areas of
inefficiencies or good practice.

Appendix 2

Page 85



In the event that, pursuant to a request which Northampton Borough Council has received under the Freedom of
Information Act 2000 (as the same may be amended or re
thereunder (collectively, the “Legislation”)
will notify PwC promptly and consult with PwC prior to disclosing such information. Northampton Borough Council agrees
to pay due regard to any representations which PwC may make in connection with such disclosure and to apply any relevant
exemptions which may exist under the Act to such information. If, following consultation with PwC, Northampton Borough
Council discloses any such information, it shall ensu
wish to include in the information is reproduced in full in any copies disclosed.

This document has been prepared for the intended recipients only. To the extent permitted by law, Pricewat
LLP does not accept or assume any liability, responsibility or duty of care for any use of or reliance on this document by
anyone, other than (i) the intended recipient to the extent agreed in the relevant contract for the matter to which th
document relates (if any), or (ii) as expressly agreed by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP at its sole discretion in writing in
advance.

© 2012 PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. All rights reserved. In this document, "PwC" refers to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
(a limited liability partnership in the United Kingdom), which is a member firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers International
Limited, each member firm of which is a separate legal entity.

n the event that, pursuant to a request which Northampton Borough Council has received under the Freedom of
(as the same may be amended or re-enacted from time to time) or any subordinate legislation made

“Legislation”), it is required to disclose any information contained in this terms of reference, it
will notify PwC promptly and consult with PwC prior to disclosing such information. Northampton Borough Council agrees

ons which PwC may make in connection with such disclosure and to apply any relevant
exemptions which may exist under the Act to such information. If, following consultation with PwC, Northampton Borough
Council discloses any such information, it shall ensure that any disclaimer which PwC has included or may subsequently
wish to include in the information is reproduced in full in any copies disclosed.

This document has been prepared for the intended recipients only. To the extent permitted by law, Pricewat
LLP does not accept or assume any liability, responsibility or duty of care for any use of or reliance on this document by
anyone, other than (i) the intended recipient to the extent agreed in the relevant contract for the matter to which th
document relates (if any), or (ii) as expressly agreed by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP at its sole discretion in writing in

© 2012 PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. All rights reserved. In this document, "PwC" refers to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
limited liability partnership in the United Kingdom), which is a member firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers International

Limited, each member firm of which is a separate legal entity.

n the event that, pursuant to a request which Northampton Borough Council has received under the Freedom of
enacted from time to time) or any subordinate legislation made

, it is required to disclose any information contained in this terms of reference, it
will notify PwC promptly and consult with PwC prior to disclosing such information. Northampton Borough Council agrees

ons which PwC may make in connection with such disclosure and to apply any relevant
exemptions which may exist under the Act to such information. If, following consultation with PwC, Northampton Borough

re that any disclaimer which PwC has included or may subsequently

This document has been prepared for the intended recipients only. To the extent permitted by law, PricewaterhouseCoopers
LLP does not accept or assume any liability, responsibility or duty of care for any use of or reliance on this document by
anyone, other than (i) the intended recipient to the extent agreed in the relevant contract for the matter to which this
document relates (if any), or (ii) as expressly agreed by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP at its sole discretion in writing in

© 2012 PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. All rights reserved. In this document, "PwC" refers to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
limited liability partnership in the United Kingdom), which is a member firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers International

Appendix 2

Page 86



Agenda Item 10

Page 87

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 102

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6 External Audit Progress Report
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2

	7 Finance Monitoring
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4
	Appendix 5
	Appendix 6

	8 Internal Audit Progress Report
	Appendix 2

	10 Internal Audit Update

